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Today, the internal audit profession has taken a huge
360-degree turnaround with a more diversified job
scope, wider responsibilities to stakeholders in an
organisation and requirements of the current job
market. Thus, creativity and agility to change and adapt
are some of the basic pre-requisites for new internal
auditors to build a career in the profession. Building a
pool of creative and agile internal auditors adds value
and progressively improves an organisation’s
operations.

R E P O R T

The risk landscape perpetually changes and moulds
challenges for internal auditors. Therefore, the ability
to adapt, embrace change and the creative capacity to
provide solutions are essential skills to lead internal
auditors to another level of professional excellence.
As internal auditors continue to navigate through the
unchartered course ahead, they need to stay abreast of
developments and innovations in various aspects of the
profession such as human capital and new
methodologies.
Change is inevitable. It heralds opportunities to be
uncovered.

160-3-3, Kompleks Maluri, Jalan Jejaka, Taman Maluri, 55100 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
Tel: (603) 9282 1148
Fax: (603) 9282 1241
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Website: www.iiam.com.my

VISION
To be the national voice of the internal audit profession: Advocating its value, promoting best practice, and
providing exceptional service to its members.

MISSION
To provide dynamic leadership for the global profession of internal auditing. Activities in support of this mission
will include:
Advocating and promoting the value that internal audit professionals add to their organisations;
Providing comprehensive professional, educational and development opportunities; standards and other
professional practice guidance; and certification programmes;
Researching, disseminating, and promoting to practitioners and stakeholders knowledge concerning
internal auditing and its appropriate role in control, risk management, and governance;
Educating practitioners and other relevant audiences on best practices in internal auditing; and
Bringing together internal auditors to share information and experiences.

OBJECTIVES
To be the recognised voice for the internal audit
profession;
To develop and sustain the internal audit profession in
Malaysia
through
appropriate
infrastructure,
coordination, support and communication; and
To provide exceptional service to IIA Malaysia’s
members.

MOTTO: “PROGRESS THROUGH SHARING”
The Institute maintains its motto “Progress Through Sharing”
and shares with our members information on new trends,
latest internal audit techniques, regulatory and statutory
requirements and the emerging issues affecting the
profession.
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GENERAL MEETING
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

THE INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL AUDITORS MALAYSIA

(Company No. 309740-D)
Company Limited By Guarantee
Incorporated in Malaysia

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE EIGHTEENTH (18TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE INSTITUTE OF
INTERNAL AUDITORS MALAYSIA WILL BE HELD AT CONCORDE HOTEL KUALA LUMPUR, 2, JALAN SULTAN
ISMAIL, 50250 KUALA LUMPUR ON SATURDAY, 4 MAY 2013 AT 2.00 P.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS:
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Institute for the financial year ended 31
December 2012.
2. To elect members to the Board of Governors :a. The Governors who retire by rotation and eligible for re-election pursuant to Article 18 of the Institute’s
Articles of Association are:
1. Choo Wei Sin
2. Walter Sandosam A/L Doss Sandosam

3. Mohd Khaidzir Bin Shahari
4. Affeiz Bin Abdul Razak

Choo Wei Sin, Walter Sandosam A/L Doss Sandosam and Mohd Khaidzir Bin Shahari had offered
themselves for re-election whilst Affeiz Bin Abdul Razak do not wish to seek for re-election.
b. Elect new members nominated to the Board of Governors for the year 2013/2014.
3. To re-appoint Messrs. Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng as the Institute’s auditors and to authorise the Board of
Governors to fix their remuneration.
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as special resolution I:
SPECIAL RESOLUTION I
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE INSTITUTE.
“THAT the alterations, modifications, deletions and/or additions to the Articles of Association of the
Institute as set out in the Appendix I enclosed to the 2012 Annual Report be and are hereby approved,
subject to the approval of the relevant authorities being obtained by the Institute.”
5. To transact any other business for which due notice has been given in accordance with the Companies Act,
1965 and the Institute’s Articles of Association.
By Order of the Board
WONG WAI FOONG (MAICSA 7001358)
THAM WAI YING (MAICSA 7016123)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
12 April 2013
NOTES :
1. Only fellow and professional members of the Institute are entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting.
Associate and student members and nominees of corporate members may attend the meeting but shall not
have voting rights.
2. Any member/members wishing to bring before the Annual General Meeting of the Institute any business other
than the ordinary business shall give notice thereof in accordance with Section 151 of the Companies Act, 1965.
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS
2012 / 2013

From Left to Right:
Nickson Choo Wei Sin (1)
Affeiz Abdul Razak (2)
Dr Nurmazilah Dato’ Mahzan (3)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Devanesan Evanson (4)
Datin Josephine Low Suet Moi (5)
Walter Sandosam (6)
Christine Ong May Ee (7)
Zahran Tasliman (8)
Lucy Wong Kam Yang (9)
Alan Chang Kong Chong (10)

NOT IN PICTURE : Mohamed Farook Nasar, Mohd Khaidzir Shahari, Philip Satish Rao, Nik Shahrizal Sulaiman
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PROFILE OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS
2012 / 2013
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

PRESIDENT
Datin Josephine Low Suet Moi BCM, MBA(UK), CIA, CISA, CFE, CRMA, CMIIA, is currently the
Chief Audit Executive of the Group Internal Audit Department of Tan Chong Motor Holdings
Berhad, one of the largest automotive organisations in Malaysia. Datin Josephine obtained
her Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) in 2001 and Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA)
in 2006. She is a Certified Fraud Examiner and she has also obtained a Certification in Risk
Management Assurance from IIA Global. She started her career as an external auditor in Ernst
& Young before joining the internal audit profession with total of more than 24 years of
experience in both external and internal auditing. Datin Josephine was the Chairman of the
Research and Technical Advisory Committee of IIA Malaysia for 2010 and 2011 as well as the
Project Champion representing IIA Malaysia on the Common Body of Knowledge of IIA, Inc.
(CBOK) that focuses on global sharing of auditing surveys and internal auditing practices
among members. She is also the Honorary Treasurer of the Asian Confederation of Institutes
of Internal Auditors (ACIIA) EXCO. She also co-chaired the Task Force on Revised Guidance on
Statement of Internal Controls 2011/2012 for Malaysia public listed companies.

VICE PRESIDENT
Nickson Choo Wei Sin, CISA, CFE, CMIIA, is currently a Director with Crowe Horwath
Governance Sdn Bhd (member of Crowe Horwath International), a provider of Governance,
Risk and Compliance Services (“GRC”) in Malaysia. He has over 20 years of experience and his
diverse professional experience includes performing operational audits, information
technology (IT) audits, corporate governance advisory, operational risk and control reviews,
fraud investigations and business process improvement reviews of public-listed and
multinational companies operating in various industries including manufacturing,
plantations, trading, hotels, construction, financial institutions and investment holding. He is
the Chairman of Professional Development Committee (2012/2013).

VICE PRESIDENT
Christine Ong May Ee, CMIIA, CIA, CRMA, CA(M), FCA(Australia), is the Senior Group General
Manager-Internal Audit of IGB Corporation Berhad. She has more than 20 years of experience
in internal audit, external audit, accounting and finance in industries such as banking and
finance, hospitality, property and construction. Christine was a member of the Host
Conference Committee for the 2011 IIA International Conference, and chaired the Finance
subcommittee. She was a member of the Professional Development Committee in 2008-2010
and was the chairperson in 2010/2011. She is currently the Chairperson of the Professional
Services Committee for the term 2011/2013. She also holds the position of Honorary
Secretary of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia, Malaysia Members Group and
chairs the Audit Committee of World Vision Malaysia.

HONORARY SECRETARY
Lucy Wong Kam Yang, CIA, CMIIA, FCMA, CGMA, CA(M), MBA(Australia), is a fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants of the United Kingdom. She is a Certified
Internal Auditor, a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and a chartered
member of the Institute of Internal Auditors. She also holds a Masters in Business
Administration from an Australian University. She is currently the Chief Internal Auditor in
Tenaga Nasional Berhad. During her tenure in TNB, she has implemented various initiatives
which include risk based auditing, internal audit rating system, talent attachment in internal
auditing, COSO framework and obtained ISO and Quality Environment certification for the
Group Internal Audit Department. Prior to joining TNB, she has served several companies in
operations and also provided internal audit services. The companies were Projek Lebuhraya
Utara-Selatan Berhad, Metramac Corporation Sdn Bhd, Metacorp Berhad, HBN Management
Services Sdn Bhd (Renong Berhad) and UEM Group Management Sdn Bhd. She was the
General Manager in charge of Group Internal Audit at UEM Group Management Sdn Bhd.

HONORARY TREASURER
Mohamed Farook Bin Nasar, MBA, CIA, ICSA, CMIIA, has more than 16 years of experience in
internal auditing in various industries namely investment holdings, unit trust, share trading,
broking firm, waste management, wet market management, manufacturing, food &
beverages and oil & gas. He was also the guest lecturer for USM in internal auditing subject
for undergraduates in 2005-2010 and postgraduate in 2011, book coordinator for the ‘Internal
Audit Practices in Malaysia’ and one of the authors for ‘Principles and Contemporary Issues in
Internal Auditing’ book. He has a long history with IIA Malaysia where he was formerly the
Technical Manager in 2004, Secretary of Northern District Society 2005/09 and is currently the
Deputy Chairman of Research and Technical Advisory Committee.

GOVERNORS
Devanesan Evanson, FCCA, LLB(Hons), CFIIA, CA(M), is President of the Malaysian Advisory
Committee of ACCA Malaysia. He was a Director with Advisory Services, Ernst & Young. Prior
to that, he was with Bursa Malaysia for 18 years where he held the positions of Head, Internal
Audit and Risk Management, Chief Regulatory Officer and Chief Market Operations Officer,
amongst others. He is also a Council Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and
also chairs the Investigation Committee.
Walter Sandosam, MMgt, CIA, CFSA, CRMA, CFIIA, is Senior Research Fellow at HELP University.
He has over 30 years banking experience in the functions of risk management, treasury,
commercial banking and international operations and served as Vice President, Group Audit

at Maybank. Walter is a member of the Audit and Assurance Standards Board, Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (MIA) and has been appointed Operations Review Panel Member of
the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission. At the global level, Walter serves as a member of
the Academic Relations Committee, IIA Global.
Affeiz Abdul Razak, BBA(Hons), CFSA, CMIIA, CBCI(UK), AMBCI(UK), is currently the Deputy
General Manager of the Enterprise Risk Management Division of Perbadanan Insurans Deposit
Malaysia (PIDM). He has vast experience in Enterprise Risk Management and internal auditing,
both as a practitioner and as a consultant. Prior to PIDM, he was the General Manager of
Internal Audit of Kumpulan Perangsang Selangor Berhad and the Vice President, Head of
Internal Audit of Malaysian Technology Development Corporation (MTDC). He has also worked
in the Risk Advisory and Internal Audit Services Practice of KPMG Malaysia and in IBM
Malaysia. He has served IIA Malaysia in the Board of Governors as Honorary Secretary for the
term 2010/2011; and as Deputy Chairman, Professional Services Committee for the terms
2011/2012 and 2012/2013. He was a member of the IIAM Marketing Subcommittee of the
Host Conference Committee for 2011 IIA International Conference in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
Mohd Khaidzir Bin Shahari, CIA, CMIIA, is currently the Executive Director with KPMG
Management and Risk Consulting Sdn. Bhd (formerly known as KPMG Business Advisory Sdn
Bhd). He is also a Chartered Accountant with the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and a
member of the Advisory Panel for Bachelor of Accountancy programme in a local university.
He has more than 18 years experience in internal audit, risk and governance advisory and
including 2 years experience as a Chief Internal Audit of a financial institution. His clients
include listed organisations, multinationals, government linked organisation and private
enterprises and he is a regular speaker for corporate governance and internal audit related
topics. He has been a member of the IIA Malaysia since 1997.
Dr Nurmazilah Dato' Mahzan, PHD, CIA, CMIIA, CA(M), CPA(M), is currently the Senior Lecturer
at the Faculty of Business and Accountancy. She obtained her PhD from University of
Birmingham United Kingdom. She is also a member of Malaysian Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (MICPA) and a chartered member of The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia
(IIA Malaysia). She commenced her career with Arthur Andersen in 1993. She later joined KUB
Malaysia Berhad as Group Accounts Manager. Her corporate experience covers various
industries including property development and construction, banking, unit trusts, trading and
manufacturing. In 1999, she left the corporate world for the academia where she embarked on
research projects in the areas of auditing, financial reporting and corporate governance. On
the professional level, she serves as a Member of the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board
(MASB), elected member of Board of Governors IIA Malaysia and a Council member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA).
Philip Satish Rao, CMIIA, CA(M), CPA(M), CPA(Aust.), is currently a Partner with Risk Services
practice in Ernst & Young Malaysia, and he is Ernst & Young's ASEAN Risk Services Leader. In his
23 years with Ernst & Young, he has served on various external and internal audits, risk
management and corporate governance, and corporate finance engagements as well as
related experience gained through secondments both overseas and locally. In serving his
clients from various industries and as a regular speaker and trainer, he not only advocates
good internal audit, risk management and governance processes/ practices, he also elevates
the stature of internal audit and risk management professions/ functions within the
organisations and in public. He was a member of the Task Force on the Statement on Risk
Management and Internal Control-Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers.
Zahran Bin Tasliman, CIA, CCSA, CMIIA, is currently the CAE of Triple Platform Sdn Bhd, a
company within Johor Corporation (JCorp) Group which operates the KFC and Pizza Hut chain
of restaurants in Malaysia and four other countries. He joined JCorp in 1994 as accountant in
Finance Department. He served as accountant in then Capital Services Division of JCorp in
1995 and was exposed to unit trust, asset management, stockbroker and corporate finance
operations. He headed the Division’s IA function in 1997. He was then seconded to the
Division’s operation in Jakarta as President Director in 1999 for two years. In November 1999,
he passed the CIA exam. He joined Group Corporate Assurance of JCorp in 2001. Amongst the
projects he involved in was IA services engagement, i.e. advisory on Corporate Governance
review and Risk Management process implementation in PLCs within the JCorp Group. He is
also in active service with the Malaysian Army’s reserve force.
Nik Shahrizal Bin Sulaiman, BA(Hons) Accounting & Finance, CMIIA, ACA(ICAEW), FRM(GARP), is
an Executive Director in PwC Malaysia and currently leads the Internal Audit practice in the
firm. He has over ten years of local and international experience in the assurance industry,
including three years as an internal audit manager in a global investment banking group. In
addition to internal audit, he has also been instrumental in developing the Shariah audit
methodology for PwC globally and is an active speaker on the subject.
Alan Chang Kong Chong, CIA, CFSA, CPA(Australia), Certified Credit Professional(Institut
Bank-Bank Malaysia, IBBM), is a Senior Vice-President and heads RHB Bank Bhd’s Group Internal
Audit. He has 20 years of internal audit experience specialising in banking areas of credit,
treasury, retail and banking operations audit, including the overseas units of the bank. He also
covers IT audits and system development life cycle project reviews. He is the Deputy Chairman
of Professional Development Committee (2012/2013). He attends the Chief Internal Audit
Networking Group (CIANG) comprising participating CIAs of financial institutions, including
commercial, Islamic and investment banks, a formal networking group under IBBM, focusing
matters of internal audit affecting the Malaysian financial services industry.
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MEETINGS & ATTENDANCES
2012 / 2013
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 2012/2013
1. The Board of Governors (BOG) attendance are as follows:
BOG Meeting Attendance
Datin Josephine Low Suet Moi, President
Christine Ong May Ee, Vice President
Nickson Choo Wei Sin, Vice President
Lucy Wong Kam Yang, Honorary Secretary
Mohamed Farook Nasar, Honorary Treasurer
Devanesan Evanson
Walter Sandosam
Mohd Khaidzir Bin Shahari
Affeiz Abdul Razak
Philip Satish Rao
Dr Nurmazilah Dato’ Mahzan
Zahran bin Tasliman
Nik Shahrizal Sulaiman
Alan Chang Kong Chong

5/6
6/6
5/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
5/6
6/6
5/6
6/6
5/6
5/6
6/6

COMMITTEE MEETINGS
2. The following members served on the various Committees of the Institute:
Meeting Attendance
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Professional Development Committee (PDC)
Nickson Choo Wei Sin
Alan Chang Kong Chong
Eddie Leng Siew Kheen
Ryan Chong Chee Seng
Frank Chin Suan Yong

3/4
3/4
3/4
4/4
3/4

Professional Services Committee (PSC)
Christine Ong May Ee
Affeiz Abdul Razak
Zahran Tasliman
Dr Suresh Kannan
P. Shanti Palaniappan
Wendy Low Li Chet
Sky Chan Kin Kwan

4/4
2/4
2/4
3/4
2/4
1/4
3/4

Academic Relations Committee (ARC)
Dr Nurmazilah Dato’ Mahzan
Lucy Wong Kam Yang
Narayanan Annamalai Chettiar
Lim Hooi Hoon
Dennis Mah Siew Hoong
Mohd Khaidzir Bin Shahari
Dr Zakiah Muhammaddun Mohamed

3/3
3/3
1/3
2/3
2/3
1/3
3/3

Research & Technical Advisory Committee (RTAC)
Philip Satish Rao
Mohamed Farook Nasar
Renganathan Narasingham
Nik Shahrizal Sulaiman
Amos Law Chih Chien
Alina Osman

3/3
3/3
3/3
2/3
3/3
3/3
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BEHIND ROLL (left to right) – Jessie Liew Siau Yan, Jess Liu Shiak Peng, Sally Goh Syed Lee, Josie R. Omilda, Noor Adiha Abu Bakar, Tey Tai Sin, Siti Rohani Umar, Nur
Zuhairah Zamberi, Umi Hazemah Hairizain, Norhidayah Abdul Kadir, Hamdani Mohd Sahit Mashud, Sivamalar Thuraisingam
FRONT ROLL (Left to right) – Siti Arafah Abdul Aziz, Tengku Idreena Tuan Ismail, Raja Nur Aina Raja Mohammad Noordin, Veronica Justin, Zaimah Ismail, Abby Chee
Yuet Yee, Nur Hayati Baharuddin, Nor Shazwani Mohamad Shafiee, Yusliza Md Yusof

Executive Director
ABBY CHEE YUET YEE

Assistant Manager Corporate Services
JESS LIU SHIAK PENG

Training Executive
JOSIE R. OMILDA

MFIN(RMIT), BSBA(HPU), Affiliate RFP, AMIM

B.COM(AUST)

Technical Director
NUR HAYATI BAHARUDDIN

Assistant Manager Membership
SITI ROHANI UMAR

Membership Executive
NOR SHAZWANI MOHAMAD SHAFIEE

MBA(USA), CIA,CCSA,CFSA, CGAP,CRMA,CMIIA, FCPA, CA(M)

Senior Training Manager
SEE WAI YOONG
B.COM(AUST), CMIIA, CA(M), FCPA(AUST)

Senior Membership Manager
TEY TAI SIN
BA (HONS)

Senior Certification Manager
ZAIMAH ISMAIL

BA (HONS)

Accounts Executive
SALLY GOH SYED LEE
Accounts Executive
JESSIE LIEW SIAU YAN
BA (HONS) ACCOUNTING

Certification Executive
SITI ARAFAH ABDUL AZIZ

BBA(HONS)

BSC(HONS)

Senior Technical Manager
SIVAMALAR THURAISINGAM

Training Executive
UMI HAZEMAH HAIRIZAIN

BA(HONS)(UK) ACCOUNTING & FINANCE, CIA, CCSA, CMIIA

BSC(HONS)

Technical Manager
TENGKU IDREENA TUAN ISMAIL

Training Executive
VERONICA JUSTIN

BA (HONS)

B.COMP.SC

BMGT(HONS)

Membership Executive
NOOR ADIHA ABU BAKAR
BBA(HONS)

Admin Officer
NUR ZUHAIRAH ZAMBERI
BSC (HONS)

Admin Officer
RAJA NUR AINA RAJA MOHAMMAD NOORDIN
B.ECON (HONS)

Admin Officer
YUSLIZA MD YUSOF
Admin Officer
NORHIDAYAH ABDUL KADIR
BIAM(HONS)

Despatch Cum Office Assistant
HAMDANI MOHD SAHIT MASHUD

Professional
Development
Services

Research and
Technical
Advisory

Membership
Services

Corporate
Services
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT
2012 / 2013

As IIA Malaysia marks its 35th
Anniversary, the Institute is
committed to helping internal
audit professionals navigate the
changing environment

The internal audit profession has undergone many significant
shifts rising to meet the expectations of Board and executive
management in an ever changing global environment. In
Malaysia, amongst these transformations was the landmark
move to mandate the setting up of an internal audit function
by all PLCs effective January 31, 2009. This is followed by the
strengthening of the Audit Committee oversight over
financial reporting, risk management and internal controls
under the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012
which gives the internal audit function its independence.
Another significant milestone was the appointment of the
Institute as the Secretariat in a joint industry-led taskforce to
enhance the ‘Statement on Internal Control – Guidance for
Directors of Public Listed Companies’ issued in 2000. The new
laws and corporate governance initiatives implemented have
helped to increase the Boards' reliance on internal audit and
all these have raised the profile and stature of the internal
audit profession.
As IIA Malaysia marks its 35th Anniversary, the Institute is
committed to helping internal audit professionals navigate
the changing environment. We have continued to increase the
diversity of training programmes to not only address basic
audit techniques, but also to help auditors keep up to date on
new trends, new statutory and regulatory requirements,
improve soft skills in addition to providing members an
opportunity to share ideas and discuss current challenges. By
sharing ideas, we strengthen our capabilities. Strong
advocacy initiatives and regulatory reform leverage coupled
with a wider business community relationship shall underpin
the way forward for the Institute.
With the 2011 International Conference behind us, IIA
Malaysia continues to build its financial strength. This past
fiscal year saw the Institute’s focus and initiatives pay off with
outstanding financial performance; a gross revenue of RM5.1
million and a net profit of RM378 thousand.
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MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS 2012
The following are some of the highlights of the year:
• A continuous growth in membership with a total of 2,720
members as at 31 December 2012; comprising 2,472
Individuals and 248 Corporates. A total of 330 new
individual members and 14 corporate members were
recruited in the same year.
• Our training department had organised 80 programmes,
contributing RM3.2 million to the revenue and more than
2,730 participants have benefited from these programmes.
• The continued increase of candidates sitting for the
Certified Internal Auditors (CIA) examination in the country
is reflected in the total of 444 examination parts
undertaken in 2012. 42 candidates completed the CIA
examination, bringing the total number of CIA to 644 as at
December 2012. The implementation of the new CIA
syllabus in 2013 has inevitably impacted the number of
enrolments as many potential candidates have deferred
their examination sitting. Nonetheless, the Institute
continues to actively promote the CIA qualification
through various public and in-house programmes with a
total of 20 previews being held during the year. A total of 9
career talks were conducted at various institutions of
higher learning to garner the interest of younger
generations towards the internal audit profession and this
is vital in anticipation of the increasing demand for
professional internal auditors in the market.
• One of the core values of the Institute is to facilitate
knowledge development among members and providing
perspectives on the best practices of the profession and its
related areas. The Institute has collaborated with Ernst &
Young on a survey, “Risk Management Practices in
Malaysia” and the results was launched in March 2012. IIA
Malaysia has also continuously monitored the progress of

PRESIDENT’S REPORT
2012 / 2013
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

the research projects that were funded by the Institute’s
research grants.
• We continue to leverage on our wide networking through
a series of long term strategic alliances with the regulators
and other professional bodies. The Institute collaborated
and participated in programmes, talks and seminars. We
participated in the session on “Corporate Governance
Blueprint and Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance
2012” as part of the Securities Commission Malaysia &
Bursa Malaysia Corporate Governance Week 2012 for
directors and stakeholders of public listed companies at
Bursa Malaysia. We have also initiated the ﬁrst “Audit
Committee Conference” in collaboration with Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (MIA) which will be held in the ﬁrst
quarter of 2013.
• As President of IIA Malaysia, I co-chaired the Task Force that
revised the Statement on Internal Controls – Guidance for
Directors of Public Listed Companies; ﬁrst issued in year
2000 together with the representative from MIA in 2012.
The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control –
Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers was released on
31 December 2012.
• Throughout 2012, 7 networking sessions with short talks
were held across the country as the Institute recognises
the importance of bringing members together.
• The awareness and emphasis on Quality Assurance (QA)
has begun to take shape among local Corporates. The
Institute certainly gained recognition as a well sought after
QA service provider, exempliﬁed by a commendable
performance where the team has completed 10 Quality
Assurance jobs which generated substantial gross revenue
to the Institute.
Annual activity report of each sub-committee is enclosed in
the remainder of the Annual Report for your information.

MOVING FORWARD
Throughout the past 35 years, the Institute has supported the
internal audit profession through development of
competency skills for its members and advocating the value
of internal audit function. In the last two years, the internal
audit profession has continued to build its credibility,
advocating its role, position and value; so as to inﬂuence key
stakeholders regarding the necessity of internal auditing for
good governance and organisational success.

reporting to the Audit Committee. The recommendation in
the Code also stresses on the need for heads of internal audit
to have the relevant qualiﬁcation and for internal auditors to
follow the standards set by recognised professional bodies.
The professional internal auditors have consistently monitored
and reported the organisation’s ethical climate and system of
internal controls and have systematically assessed risks and
made recommendations for improving risk mitigating
processes. They have also provided to management and the
audit committee clear communication, guidance and
assurance regarding compliance with rules and regulations,
threats to the eﬀectiveness of the organisation’s operations
and reputation and steps towards enhanced corporate
governance.
The competency of internal auditors and their ability to think
beyond the norms will be a pre-requisite for the increasing
expectations and responsibilities placed on them, and to
make a profound diﬀerence to overall industries. As internal
auditors, we need to assess our relevance in our respective
organisations. The challenge is whether we have the skills to
deliver a truly insightful perspective or whether we are too
mired in compliance activities. Although we should never lose
sight of the fundamentals, we must also work to become
trusted business advisors.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The continued success of IIA Malaysia reﬂects the
commitment of its past and present Board of Governors in
keeping the Institute at the leading edge of the profession
and the tireless eﬀorts of the supporting IIA Malaysia staﬀ that
have made every initiative a reality.
I extend my gratitude to all valued members, professional
bodies, regulators, corporations and individuals whose
generous support assured the success of the Institute’s
programmes and services. Your dedication allows us to
expand our reach and deliver our mission.
I would like to thank all of you! Together, let us continue to
meet challenges, facilitate changes and earn credibility and
respect on behalf of the internal audit profession.
I wish to sign oﬀ with the following quote:
“Never stop pedaling to power your dreams” ~ Terri Guillemets

The importance of good corporate governance has received
signiﬁcant public and regulatory attention in recent years.
Conclusively, a crucial part of an entity’s corporate
governance is its internal audit function.
This is reﬂected in the revised Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance 2012, which emphasises on the mandated
function of internal audit and its independence by directly

DATIN JOSEPHINE LOW BCM
CIA, CMIIA, CISA, CFE, CRMA

PRESIDENT 2012/2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT
The Board of Governors (“the Board”) has implemented the principles set under the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance 2012 (“the Code”) as far as they are relevant to the Institute in its commitment to preserving
members’ confidence.

THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
The Board is the principal governing body of IIA Malaysia and is responsible for the overall governance of IIA
Malaysia including providing oversight of the Institute’s financial and organisational matters encompassing
policies, business plans, budgets and targets.
The Board currently comprises fourteen (14) Non-Executive Independent Directors, termed as Governors. The
appointment of Governors is made at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) in accordance with the Institute’s
Articles of Association. The Board is chaired by a President.
The Board recognises that to be effective and relevant, Governors should be fit and proper, including having
attributes and criteria such as relevant internal audit qualifications, professional standing with relevant expertise
in financial, legal, business and technical fields. The Governors are drawn from diverse backgrounds and with
differing skill sets gained from service in private sector, public service and regulatory institutions. This brings
depth and diversity in expertise and perspectives which facilitate deliberation of issues from a wider perspective.
Every three (3) years, the Governors are required, by rotation, to offer themselves for re-election. At the Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) on 12 May 2012, new Governors were elected and they received information outlining
their duties and responsibilities in a formal induction session.
The profiles of all the Governors are detailed on page 3 of this Annual Report.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
The Board’s primary responsibilities are amongst others, as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

Review and approve the strategic business plans of the Institute;
Represent the Institute in major strategic sessions invited by the regulators, professional bodies or other
stakeholders;
Identify and manage the principal risks aﬀecting the Institute;
Review the adequacy and integrity of the Institute’s system of internal controls ; and
Oversee the conduct of the Institute’s activities and succession planning of the Secretariat

The Board is independent of Management and free from potential conflict of interests which could impair and
materially aﬀect the exercise of their independent judgment. Each Governor must disclose any matter which may
affect his/her independence as soon as he/she becomes aware of it.

BOARD MEETINGS
Since the last AGM held on 12 May 2012, the Board met 6 times. The Board reviewed performance reports
including analysis of major issues on professional development, membership services, academic relations,
professional practices and financial reports. The attendance record at Board meetings is provided on page 4. All
Governors have access to the Institute’s Secretariat in order to fulﬁll their roles and responsibilities as Governors.
The Board receives financial and operational reports from Management periodically, which provide a
comprehensive review and analysis of the business operations and financial issues In addition, minutes of
meetings of the Board Committees are tabled and considered by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
While the Board has overall control and management of IIA Malaysia, it has delegated a range of its
responsibilities to its Committees. The Committees operate within clearly defined terms of reference as follows:
Executive Committee (EXCO)
The EXCO comprises a President, two (2) Vice Presidents, an Honorary Secretary and an Honorary Treasurer who
are elected by the Board of Governors amongst its members.
The primary responsibilities of the EXCO are:
•
•
•

To review operational issues with regards to the execution of action plans by the various sub-committees;
To recommend or revise guidelines or policies pertaining to the administration of the Institute; and
To review the performance of the Secretariat so as to maintain a high standard of performance in the daily
administration of the Institute.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, comprising three (3) members, has the responsibility to oversee
and review the overall composition and balance of the Board; review succession plans; recommend to the Board
a compensation and remuneration package for the Executive Director and staﬀ, including reviewing policy
matters relating to remuneration and performance management. The Executive Director and staﬀ of the Institute
are given key performance indicators which form the basis of their annual performance appraisal.
Governors do not receive any emolument, bonuses or retirement benefits. The fees received by Governors due to
training or other services rendered to the Institute in lieu of their profession are declared under Note 17 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements.
Audit Committee
IIA Malaysia has established an Audit Committee comprising three independent members who are not from the
Board.
Its main responsibilities are as follows:
•
•
•

To deal with the appointment and removal of external auditors / internal auditors;
To review the annual ﬁnancial statements; and
To review the eﬀectiveness of the risk management and internal control system

Please refer to page 12-13 for the Audit Committee report.

PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
The roles of the President and the Executive Director are clearly deﬁned. There is a clear separation of roles
between them which allows for better understanding and distribution of responsibilities and accountabilities;
facilitates operational eﬃciency and expedites decision-making.
The Executive Director is primarily responsible for managing the day-to-day operations and is charged with
implementing operational decisions in line with the strategic and long-term initiatives of the Institute. She
attends Board and Board Committees meetings; however; she is not a Governor and is not entitled to vote.
The Board had established an accountability matrix for the roles of the Board, the President and the Executive
Director in ensuring eﬃciency and proper checks and balances in deriving decisions at the strategic and
operational level.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of the Institute is made voluntarily by the Board in line
with its objective of leading by example in championing sound governance, risk and internal control practices.
Board’s Responsibilities
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for the Institute’s systems of internal controls as well as
reviewing the adequacy, integrity and effectiveness of these systems. However, such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. In addition, it should be noted
that these systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement of loss.
The Board is committed to maintain a sound internal control system for the Institute and review the adequacy
and integrity of the system that includes compliance with laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines. The
Institute’s Management team is assisting the Board on implementation of the Institute’s policies, procedures and
guidelines on risk management and sound internal controls system.
The key features of the internal control systems are described below:
RISK MANAGEMENT
The Institute has put in place a formalised risk management policy and risk reporting structure. There is an
ongoing process for identifying and managing the significant risks faced by the Institute.
The main focus of risk management activity during the financial year was related to ensuring the safety and
welfare of the employees under OSHA. A training session was held on 28 September 2012 and subsequent
measures were taken to mitigate these risks. The Board also considered succession risk in the management of the
institute with the resignation of key staff and is in the process of managing the risk accordingly.
INTERNAL CONTROLS
Issues relating to the operations of the Institute are highlighted to the Board’s attention during the Board
Meetings. Further independent assurance is provided by the Internal Audit Function and the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee reviews internal control matters and highlights to the Board on any significant issues for
the Board’s attention and action.
The internal audit function is outsourced to an independent consulting firm. The independent consulting firm
reports directly to the Audit Committee which is independent of the Board. The primary role of the internal audit
is to assure the Board, through the Audit Committee, that the systems of internal controls are functioning as
intended. Further details of the Internal Audit Function are set on page 13 in the Audit Committee Report.
OTHER KEY FEATURES OF THE CONTROL MECHANISM
The other key elements of the Institute’s control mechanism are as follows:
•
•

10

Adequate and timely information pertaining to financial and operational performance is supplied to the
Board for discussion and approval;
Clearly deﬁned roles and responsibilities, authorities and accountability to prevent any conﬂict of interest
within the Institute have been established;
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•
•

The policies and procedures for key functions are in place to govern the internal controls system; and
Maintenance of proper accounting records, consistent application of appropriate accounting policies
supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates; and preparation of the ﬁnancial statements
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1965, applicable approved accounting standards in
Malaysia and other regulatory provisions.

ASSURANCE MECHANISM
In view of the importance of maintaining a sound internal control system, the Board has extended the
responsibilities of determining the quality, adequacy and eﬀectiveness of the Institute’s control environment to
the Audit Committee. The functions and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are outlined in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 12-13.
There was no material control failure or weakness that would have material adverse eﬀect on the Institute for the
year 2012.

The above statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 18 March 2013.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT
The Audit Committee of the Institute was established by the Board in 1997.
The objectives of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities particularly
relating to business ethics, policies and practices, financial management and internal control of the Institute.
1. Composition
The Audit Committee comprised the following three (3) Independent members who are not Board members
of the Institute:
• Wong Yew Sen, CFIIA (Chairman)
• Abd Razak Haron, CIA, CFIIA
• Lee Min On, CMIIA
2. Attendance of the meetings
During the financial year, the Audit Committee held four (4) meetings and details of the Audit Committee
members’ attendance are as follows:
Name of Committee Member
Wong Yew Sen
Abd Razak Haron
Lee Min On

Designation

Attendance

Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Member
Independent Non-Executive Member
Independent Non-Executive Member

4/4
3/4
4/4

3. Terms of reference
a. Composition
The Board shall elect an Audit Committee comprising not less than three (3) members where the
majority of them shall be not be members of the Board.
The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from amongst themselves. All members of
the Audit Committee, including the Chairman, will hold office unless notified otherwise by the Board.
b. Objectives
The primary objectives of the Audit Committee shall be:
i. To provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities particularly relating to
business ethics, policies and practices, financial management and internal control;
ii. To provide greater emphasis on the audit function by increasing the objectivity and independence
of external and internal auditors and providing a forum that is independent of the Management;
and
iii. To maintain through regular scheduled meetings a direct line of communication between the
Board and the external auditors, internal auditors and financial management.
c. Duties and Responsibilities
The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee shall be:i. To consider the appointment of the external auditors, the audit fee and any question of resignation
or dismissal;
ii. To discuss with the external auditors before the commencement of the audit;
iii. To review the annual ﬁnancial statements before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:• any changes in accounting policies and practices;
• major judgmental areas;
• signiﬁcant adjustments resulting from the audit; and
• compliance with accounting standards, regulatory and other legal requirements
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iv. To discuss issues arising from the audits and any matters auditors may wish to discuss;
v. To review the internal audit programme, consider the major findings of internal audit investigations
and management response, ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors;
vi. To keep under review the effectiveness of internal control systems; and
vii. To carry out such other functions as maybe agreed by the Audit Committee and the Board.
d. Authority
The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within the terms of
reference.
It is authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee and all employees are required
to cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee.
e. Meeting and Minutes
The Audit Committee shall hold not less than two (2) meetings a year. The quorum for each meeting
shall be two (2) members.
Representatives of all external auditors shall attend meeting(s) where matters relating to the audit of
the statutory accounts and/or the external auditors are to be discussed.
Minutes of each meeting shall be kept and presented at every ensuing Board meeting.
4. Summary of Activities of the Audit Committee during the year
The Audit Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its Terms of Reference.
The main activities carried out by the Audit Committee were as follows:
i. Reviewed the external and internal audit reports, status of corrective actions taken and assistance
rendered by staff to the auditors;
ii. Considered the appointment of the external auditors and the audit fee;
iii. Evaluated the performance and annual plan of the internal auditors;
iv. Evaluated the adequacy of risk management and system of internal controls; and
v. Reviewed the changes in accounting standards
5. Internal Audit Function
The internal audit function is undertaken by an independent consulting firm. Its principal activities are to
perform regular and systematic reviews of the system of internal controls and to provide reasonable
assurance that the system of internal controls continue to operate satisfactorily and effectively. The internal
auditor will report the findings directly to the Audit Committee.
The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit function as well as the nature of the assurance
activities provided by the function are articulated in the internal audit charter.
The Internal Control Review report for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 was issued on 27 February
2013 and was deliberated during the Audit Committee Meeting.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
(PDC) REPORT
In 2012, the Professional Development department of the Institute under the leadership of See Wai Yoong and in
collaboration with the Professional Development Committee (PDC), continued with the organisation of quality
and value-added training programmes for the members of the Institute. The committee reviewed the existing
programmes that have been conducted and recommended new programmes and topics that would meet the
current challenges of the members and the industry at large. The Institute is happy to report that the
programmes conducted for the year contributed close to RM3.3 million to the Institute’s revenue for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012.
During the year under review, the following major professional development programmes and activities were
held:

• 2012 National Conference on Internal Auditing
The 2012 National Conference on Internal Auditing was held on 22 - 23 October 2013 at the Kuala Lumpur
Convention Centre (KLCC) and officiated by YBhg Dato‘ Dr. Nik Ramlah Mahmood, Deputy Chief Executive,
Securities Commission Malaysia.

• 2012 Corporate Fraud Conference
The Corporate Fraud Conference was held on 26 - 27 March 2012 at Prince Hotel & Residence Kuala Lumpur.
This Conference was attended by more than 100 delegates and featured plenary sessions and concurrent
master classes by distinguished local and international speakers.

• 2012 East Malaysia Conference
The 2012 East Malaysia Conference was held on 25 – 26 June 2012 at Hilton Kuching, Sarawak and officiated
by YB Dato’ Sri Wong Soon Koh, Minister of Finance (II) and Minister of Local Government and Community
Development Sarawak. This Conference was attended by more than 70 delegates and featured plenary
sessions and concurrent master classes by distinguished local and international speakers.

• Core Audit Training
The Institute has been very active in organising 81 programmes comprising 3 Conferences, 59 workshops and
seminars, 5 talks, and 14 in-house programmes during the year. It is estimated that more than 3000
participants have been trained under these programmes.

• New Programmes
More than 20 new workshops and talks were introduced during the year and conducted by international and
local topic experts covering areas such as information system, construction audit, accounting audit, people
management skill, amongst others. The PDC will continue to identify new areas of interests to meet the needs
of its members.

• Collaborations with Regulatory and Professional Bodies
In line with the strategy of profiling the internal auditing profession and to forge smart partnerships with
similar institutions or professional bodies, the Institute has collaborated with the following organisations and
conducted programmes jointly for the members of both organisations and the general public:
– Seminar on “Introduction to Forensic Accounting & Forensic Auditing” was held in Kuala Lumpur, while the
“Forensic Accounting and Fraud Auditing” was held in 2 locations, i.e. Kota Bharu and Kuala Terengganu,
“Fraud Detection and Prevention” was held at 2 locations as well, i.e. in Miri and Sibu, and the “Risk
Management and Internal Control” in Ipoh – in collaboration with ACCA Malaysia.
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– Talks on “Corporate Governance Blueprint and Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2012” as part of
the Securities Commission Malaysia & Bursa Malaysia Corporate Governance Week 2012 for directors and
stakeholders of public listed companies at Bursa Malaysia.

• Regional Training
A total of 2 regional programmes were held in the year, i.e. 1 each in Johor Bahru and Kota Kinabalu.

• Chief Audit Executive Programme
A half day Chief Audit Executive forum “Current Updates on Governance” was held on 27 March 2012 at the
Prince Hotel and Residence Kuala Lumpur. This forum was attended by more that 30 participants and
participated by the heads of Internal Audit functions.
The PDC welcomes on board a number of new speakers and trainers during the year and would like to thank all
speakers and trainers for their effort and commitment in raising the knowledge and skills of the internal audit
professionals and directors. We also thank all our members and corporate organisations who have looked to the
Institute for their training needs and have given their unwavering support for the Institute’s programmes and
conferences.
The PDC would like to extend our deepest appreciation to the team in the Institute’s Training department for
their dedication, commitment, untiring efforts and continued passion to serve the ever growing knowledge
needs of the members and the profession.
Lastly, I thank the committee members of the PDC for their input, support and contribution of their time in the
interest of the Institute.
Nickson Choo
Chairperson
Professional Development Committee 2012/2013
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MEMBERSHIP
Membership of IIA Malaysia increased in 2012 to a total of 2,472 individual members as at 31 December 2012 as
compared to 2,410 members in 2011. 330 new members joined in 2012. The corporate membership increased
from 238 in 2011 to 248 members in 2012.
Individual Membership Growth 2011-2012
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ACTIVITIES
In 2012, the PSC organised the following activities:

• Membership Drive Campaign
To increase the membership of the Institute, a membership drive campaign was organised from 15 January to
31 July 2012. 42 members participated in the campaign and 66 new members were recruited through the
campaign.

• Members’ Networking Session in Kuala Lumpur (13 March 2012)
IIA Malaysia organised a networking session on 13 March 2012 for members in Kuala Lumpur at IIA Malaysia
Training Hall. The session was attended by 38 participants. The talk on “Developing and Implementing a Fraud
Risk Assurance Map” was presented by Ranjit Singh, Managing Director of Columbus Advisory Sdn Bhd.

• Members’ Networking Session in Johor (19 April 2012)
A networking session was organised for members in the Southern Region at the Puteri Pacific Hotel, Johor
Bahru. The session was attended by 22 participants. Nickson Choo, Vice President, IIA Malaysia / Director of
Crowe Horwath Governance Sdn Bhd, gave a talk on “Reviewing IT Governance Within an Organisation”.

• Members’ Networking Session in Kuching (7 June 2012)
IIA Malaysia held the networking session for East Malaysia members at the Grand Margherita Hotel Kuching,
Sarawak on 7 June 2012. Nickson Choo, Vice President, IIA Malaysia / Director of Crowe Horwath Governance
Sdn Bhd, gave a talk on “Reviewing IT Governance Within an Organisation” to 18 participants.

• Members’ Movie Night (12 July 2012)
IIA Malaysia organised its first movie night for members on 12 July 2012 at the MBO Cinema VIVA Home. 79
members gathered that night to network and they enjoyed the movie.
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• Members’ Networking Session in Penang (8 September 2012)
The Penang Working Committee of IIA Malaysia organised a networking session for Penang members at the
Vistana Hotel, Penang on 8 September 2012. Nickson Choo, Vice President IIA Malaysia/ Director of Crowe
Horwath, gave a talk on “Increasing the Value of Internal Audit” to 37 participants.

• Members’ Networking Session cum Hari Raya Gathering in Kuala Lumpur (26
September 2012)
IIA Malaysia organised a networking session cum Hari Raya gathering on 26 September 2012 for members in
Kuala Lumpur at IIA Malaysia Training Hall. The session was attended by 28 participants. Walter Sandosam,
Senior Research Fellow, Centre for Applied Finance & Economics, HELP University, presented a talk on “Our
Relevance as Internal Auditors” to the audience. Members were also given a preview on the 2012 National
Conference after the talk.

• Members’ Networking Session in Kota Kinabalu (11 October 2012)
A networking session was organised for members in the East Malaysia at Shangri-La Hotel, Kota Kinabalu on 11
October 2012. 17 participants attended the event. Suresh D., CEO of Crimson Corporate Management Sdn Bhd,
gave a talk on “Forensic and the Internal Auditor”.

• 35th Anniversary and 2011/2012 Graduation Ceremony (5 November 2012)
The 35th Anniversary and 2011/2012 Graduation Ceremony was held on 5 November 2012 at the Double Tree
Hilton, Kuala Lumpur and attended by about 300 guests/members.
One of the highlights of the ceremony was the 2011 Corporate Awards Presentation Ceremony. The awards
were presented to corporate members who have been very supportive of the Institute’s training and
certification programmes.
Another highlight of the evening was the recognition of members who have been with the Institute for 15, 25
and 25 years. These members were presented with a certificate and a special IIAM collar pin.

• Members’ Networking Session in Johor (23 November 2012)
A networking session was organised for members in the Southern Region at Persada Johor, Johor Bahru. The
session was attended by 28 participants. Nurhayati Baharuddin, Technical Director, IIA Malaysia, gave a talk on
“2013 IIA Standards Update”.

• Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
As a part of CSR initiative, the Institute participated in the Orang Utan conservation programme. Orang utan
clip-on souvenirs from the programme were utilised for the 2012 East Malaysia Conference (25-26 June 2012)
which was held at Hilton Hotel, Kuching as well as the 2012 National Conference (22-23 October 2012) held at
Kuala Lumpur Convention Center.

• Publications
The Keeping In Touch (KIT) provides an insight on current issues and the latest developments in the internal
auditing profession as well as information on the programmes and activities organised by the Institute.
Beginning 2012, IIA Malaysia changed the format of the newsletter production from quarterly printing to 2
issues of e-newsletter and 2 issues of printed copies. The change is important as the Institute aimed to reach
out to a wider audience while supporting environmental consciousness initiatives by going online and
reducing paper usage.
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 • THE INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL AUDITORS MALAYSIA
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Regional Groups
The committee recognised that 25% (602) of the Institute members reside outside the Klang Valley. In that respect,
two working groups were set up in Penang and Johor to cater to the needs of members in the Northern and
Southern regions respectively. In addition to the Sarawak District Society, there was also effort to re-activate the
Sabah District Society to reach out to our members in East Malaysia especially through networking sessions and
the East Malaysia Conference.

2012 Membership Survey
The membership survey began on January 2012 with the questionnaire emailed out to all individual members and
uploaded on the website. A total of 111 members completed and submitted the survey. Overall, the survey results
showed that the highest number of respondents came from members who have been with the IIA Malaysia for 5-6
years. About 46% believed that becoming a member of IIA Malaysia will give an impact to their career succession. A
significant number of respondents, 93%, agreed that IIA Malaysia’s current membership fee as reasonable. The
respondents were largely pleased with the overall service provided to members with 63% rating the services good.
Based on the findings, the most useful benefits ranked by respondents are the Professional Practices Framework
(IPPF) (69), conferences, seminars workshops and talks (53), bimonthly Internal Audit Journal (48), membership
designation, i.e. AIIA, CMIIA (41), access to members only section at global website (33); educational product (33);
Keeping In Touch (KIT) newsletter (21) and networking session (19). Other benefits that are regarded as useful
included resource center at the secretariat (9), fraternity groups (5) and district society (3). (More details on the
survey are available at the website)
The PSC would like to thank members who have responded to the membership survey and those who have
contributed articles to the KIT. The PSC also looks forward to more participation by members in future surveys and
contribution of articles as part of knowledge sharing among the internal audit fraternity.

Christine Ong
Chairperson
Professional Services Committee 2012/2013
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CERTIFICATION
Certified Internal Auditor (CIA)
Year 2012 saw an improvement in the number of candidates enrolled and sit for the IIA certification programmes.
A total of 171 new candidates enrolled into CIA whilst 444 examination parts were taken in this year. 42
candidates completed the CIA programme. The total number of members who have completed the CIA exam by
December 2012 is 644.
The CIA was promoted mainly through preview sessions. 21 preview sessions were conducted, comprising public
preview, in-house preview and on-campus preview held in collaboration with Sunway TES. As a result of the
campus preview and promotion, IIA Malaysia registered 19 undergraduate students who wish to take the
examination.
The CIA and other specialty programmes were also promoted at IIA Malaysia‘s booth during the 2012 Corporate
Fraud, East Malaysia and National Conferences as well as during career talks and other events at various
institutions of higher learning.

Specialty Programmes
8 candidates passed the Certification in Control Self-Assessment (CCSA) examination, as such the total number of
CCSA certified member as at 31 December 2012 was 52.
1 candidate passed the Certified Financial Services Auditor (CFSA) examination. The total number of CFSA as at 31
December 2012 was 27.
The newly introduced Certification in Risk Management Assurance (CRMA) via Professional Experience Recognition
(PER) received good response from the members. As at 31 December 2012, 34 members were certified as CRMA.
Members who do not qualify for PER may obtain the CRMA through examination which will be offered in mid
2013.

Other Activities
A Graduation Ceremony was held on 5 November 2012 in conjunction with IIA Malaysia’s 35th Anniversary Dinner.
Tan Sri Ambrin Buang, the Auditor General of Malaysia was invited as the Guest of Honour and he presented scrolls
to 26 CIAs and CCSA graduates. Chiang Zeyi was presented the Past President Award for his successful completion
of all four parts of the CIA exam in 2011. The Award was sponsored and presented by Wee Hock Kee, President of
IIA Malaysia for the 2004/2006 term.
A new examination centre for IIA certification programme was opened in Johor Bahru in February 2012. With the
opening of this examination centre, there are a total of 7 examination centres in Malaysia – 3 in Klang Valley, 1
each in Penang, Kuching and Johor Bahru. The other one is operated by Sunway TES in its Sunway Campus.
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The Institute continues to work with institutions of higher learning to promote internal auditing profession and
education through academic support and various programmes.
An inaugural Internal Auditing Workshop was held in collaboration with the Faculty of Business and Accountancy,
Universiti Malaya on 11 May 2012. 160 students participated in the Workshop which featured talks on Fraud
Auditing, IT Auditing, ERM as well as a career talk and CIA Preview. Following the success of this workshop, the
CARC will continue to organise similar workshop in other universities.
We continue to visit various universities to conduct career talks. The objective of the talk is to introduce to students
the profession of internal auditing and to create awareness that internal auditing is an interesting career option for
them to consider. Eight sessions of career talks were conducted in Taylor’s College, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia
(UKM), Universiti Teknologi MARA (UITM), Sunway College, Universiti Putra Malaysia (UPM) and Universiti Malaya
(UM).

Dr Nurmazilah Dato’ Mahzan
Chairperson
Academic Relations Committee 2012/2013
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The Research and Technical Advisory Committee (RTAC), during the year under review, continued with the
implementation of its strategic plans to achieve the following objectives:
•
•
•
•
•
•

to provide technical advice on matters relating to internal audit, corporate governance, risk management,
internal control and other internal audit related matters;
to provide periodic technical updates to members on recent issues relating to audit related matters;
to promote thought leadership on internal audit matters;
to plan and coordinate the implementation research projects for IIA Malaysia pertaining to internal audit
related matters;
to provide grants for internal audit related research projects;
to identify and initiate projects to build the research fund.

The RTAC has further enhanced its technical advisory role by providing members with periodic technical updates
through e-mails, sourcing and publishing more technical related articles in the KIT newsletter. The Committee
released three issues of the e-techline, an electronic update designed to keep members posted with technical
issues concerning the profession. The topics covered in the e-techline included a research report on Insight:
Delivery Value to Stakeholders, the updated Internal Control – Integrated Framework released by COSO, The
Internal Audit Function in Banks – consultative document issued by the Basel Committee, Practice Guides, the
proposed changes to the Standards, research commissioned by COSO on Enterprise Risk Management —
Understanding and Communicating Risk Appetite, and the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012
(MCCG 2012).
The technical team of IIA Malaysia continued to provide pertinent advisory feedback in response to various
technical enquiries received from members, with views and comments sought from members of the RTAC, as
appropriate, to balance with and augment those of the technical team. Some of the members of the Committee
are also members of the task force comprising representatives from professional bodies and practitioners from
various industries who revised the Statement on Internal Control – Guidance for Directors of Public Listed
Companies (issued in 2000) to reﬂect the various amendments made to the MCCG 2012 and Bursa Malaysia‘s
Listing Requirements. The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control – Guidelines for Directors of
Listed Issuers was issued in December 2012.
The survey results on “Risk Management Practices in Malaysia” were released in March 2012 and the report on the
survey results can be viewed at IIA Malaysia’s website.
The Committee is continuously monitoring the progress of the following two research projects that were funded
by research grants approved by the Committee:
•
•

Internal Audit Function, Corporate Governance Mechanisms and Financial Reporting Quality: Evidence from
Malaysia
Internal Audit Independence: Roles of the Audit Committee in Curbing Financial Irregularities

The Committee looks forward to having more members and educators involved in internal audit related research
projects that will contribute to bringing the profession to the forefront of corporate governance.

Philip Satish Rao
Chairperson
Research and Technical Advisory Committee 2012/2013
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GOVERNORS' REPORT
GOVERNORS' REPORT
The Governors hereby submit their report together with the audited financial statements of The Institute of
Internal Auditors Malaysia (the “Institute”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Institute are to promote and develop the practice of internal auditing in Malaysia and
to provide training and development facilities to its members.
There have been no significant changes to the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.

RESULTS

Profit before taxation
Taxation

RM
378,050
(77,543)

Net profit for the financial year

300,507

DIVIDENDS
In accordance with the Memorandum of Association, no dividend is payable to the members of the Institute.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All material transfers to and from reserves and provisions during the financial year have been disclosed in the
financial statements.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Before the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position of the Institute were made out,
the Governors took reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts, and had satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had
been written off and adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts.
At the date of this report, the Governors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the amount written
off for bad debts, or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts, in the financial statements of the Institute
inadequate to any substantial extent.
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CURRENT ASSETS
Before the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position of the Institute were made
out, the Governors took reasonable steps to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were
unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business, including their values as shown in the accounting
records of the Institute had been written down to an amount that they might be expected to be realised.
At the date of this report, the Governors are not aware of any circumstances that would render the values
attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Institute misleading.

VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the Governors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen, which render
adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Institute misleading or
inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
At the date of this report, there does not exist:(i) any charge on the assets of the Institute that has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures
the liabilities of any other person, and
(ii) any contingent liabilities in respect of the Institute that have arisen since the end of the financial year.
No contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the Institute have become enforceable, or are likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
Governors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Institute to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES
At the date of this report, the Governors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt with in this
report or the financial statements of the Institute that would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.
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ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE
The results of the operations of the Institute for the financial year were not, in the opinion of the Governors,
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
No item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of
the financial year and the date of this report which is likely, in the opinion of the Governors, to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Institute for the financial year in which this report is made.

GOVERNORS
The Governors who served since the date of the last report are:Datin Low Suet Moi
Christine Ong May Ee
Choo Wei Sin
Lucy Wong Kam Yang
Mohamed Farook Bin Nasar
Devanesan A/L J.A. Evanson
Fatimah Binti Abu Bakar
Datuk Theivandran A/L S. Rajadurai
Walter Sandosam A/L Doss Sandosam
Mohamad Azlan Bin Jaafar
Mohd Khaidzir Bin Shahari
Affeiz Bin Abdul Razak
Raja Azura Binti Raja Mahayuddin
Dr. Nurmazilah Dato’ Mahzan
Philip Satish Rao
Zahran Bin Tasliman
Nik Shahrizal Bin Sulaiman
Chang Kong Chong

- elected on 12 May 2012

- retired on 12 May 2012
- retired on 12 May 2012
- retired on 12 May 2012

- retired on 12 May 2012

- elected on 12 May 2012
- elected on 12 May 2012
- elected on 12 May 2012

BOARD OF GOVERNORS‘ INTERESTS AND BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Governor of the Institute has received or become entitled to
receive any benefit (other than as disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract
made by the Institute with the Governor or with a firm in which the Governor is a member, or with a company
in which the Governor has substantial financial interest.
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AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

On behalf of the Board of Governors,

DATIN LOW SUET MOI
Governor

CHRISTINE ONG MAY EE
Governor

Kuala Lumpur
18 March 2013
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012
Note

31.12.2012
RM

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

4

528,064

552,952

578,104

528,064

552,952

578,104

349,405
197,238
59,759
–
–
4,575,830

561,433
104,803
66,554
–
–
5,524,408

372,722
152,620
62,727
550,910
35,928
2,427,310

Total Current Assets

5,182,232

6,257,198

3,602,217

TOTAL ASSETS

5,710,296

6,810,150

4,180,321

4,802,193
85,654

4,510,237
86,279

3,164,726
74,835

4,887,847

4,596,516

3,239,561

76,962
401,069
337,575
6,843

23,342
1,747,419
282,671
160,202

39,987
636,067
264,706
–

Total Current Liabilities

822,449

2,213,634

940,760

Total Liabilities

822,449

2,213,634

940,760

5,710,296

6,810,150

4,180,321

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Inventories
Deferred expenses
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Accumulated funds
Research fund

5
6
7
8

9

Total Equity
Current Liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Advance subscriptions and fees
Tax payable

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

10
11

The accompanying notes set out on pages 33 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

2012
RM

2011
RM

REVENUE

13

5,119,462

13,089,891

Costs

14

(2,787,840)

(10,141,469)

2,331,622

2,948,422
214,593
(1,532,924)

GROSS PROFIT
Other income
Administrative and other operating expenses

15
16

193,317
(2,146,889)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

17

378,050

Taxation

18

(77,543)

NET PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

300,507

1,630,091
(270,136)
1,359,955

The accompanying notes set out on pages 33 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
Research
Fund
RM

Accumulated
Funds
RM

Total
Equity
RM

At 1 January 2011

74,835

3,164,726

3,239,561

Utilised during the financial year
Transfer from accumulated funds
Net profit for the financial year

(3,000)
14,444
–

–
(14,444)
1,359,955

(3,000)
–
1,359,955

At 31 December 2011

86,279

4,510,237

4,596,516

Utilised during the financial year
Transfer from accumulated funds
Net profit for the financial year

(9,176)
8,551
–

–
(8,551)
300,507

(9,176)
–
300,507

At 31 December 2012

85,654

4,802,193

4,887,847

The accompanying notes set out on pages 33 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2012
RM

2011
RM

378,050

1,630,091

51,787
(125,747)
214

53,268
(105,856)
–

304,304

1,577,503

–
6,795
135,736
(1,237,826)

550,910
(3,827)
(140,894)
1,112,672

(790,991)
(230,902)

3,096,364
(74,006)

(1,021,893)

3,022,358

(27,113)
109,604
(9,176)

(28,116)
121,465
(3,000)

73,315

90,349

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(948,578)

3,112,707

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

5,474,408

2,361,701

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

4,525,830

5,474,408

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Interest income
Writeoff of property, plant and equipment

Changes in Working Capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in deferred expenses
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in payables

Tax paid
Net Operating Cash Flows
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Receipt of interest income
(Decrease)/Increase in research fund (net)
Net Investing Cash Flows

The accompanying notes set out on pages 33 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Note
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks
Fixed deposits with licensed commercial banks

Less: Fixed deposits pledged with bank

8
8

2012
RM

2011
RM

570,421
4,005,409

1,759,932
3,764,476

4,575,830
(50,000)

5,524,408
(50,000)

4,525,830

5,474,408

The accompanying notes set out on pages 33 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The principal activities of the Institute are to promote and develop the practice of internal auditing in
Malaysia and to provide training and development facilities to its members.
There have been no significant changes to the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.
The Institute is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.
The office of the Institute is located at No. 160-3-2 & 160-3-3, Kompleks Maluri, Jalan Jejaka, Taman Maluri,
Cheras, 55100 Kuala Lumpur.
The financial statements are expressed in Ringgit Malaysia.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Governors in accordance with a
resolution of the Governors on 18 March 2013.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Institute have been prepared in accordance with the Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
The financial statements of the Institute have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except as
disclosed in the significant accounting policies in Notes 2.1.
The financial statements of the Institute for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 is the first set of
financial statements prepared in accordance with the MFRSs, including MFRS 1 ‘First-time adoption of
MFRSs’. In the previous financial year, the financial statements of the Institute were prepared in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”) in Malaysia.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of the revenue and expenses during the reporting period. It also requires the Governors to
exercise their judgment in the process of applying the accounting policies of the Institute. Although these
estimates and judgment are based on the Governors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results may differ.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New, Revised and Amendments/Improvements to Accounting Standards and IC Int
(a) Explanation of Transition to MFRSs
In conjunction with the planned convergence of FRSs with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board on 1 January 2012, the
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) had on 19 November 2011 issued a new MASB
approved accounting standards, MFRSs (“MFRSs Framework”) for application in the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
The MFRSs Framework is mandatory for adoption by all Entities Other Than Private Entities for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, with the exception of entities subject to the
application of MFRS 141 Agriculture and/or IC Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
(“Transitioning Entities”). The Transitioning Entities are given an option to defer adoption of the
MFRSs framework to financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Transitioning Entities
also includes those entities that consolidate or equity account or proportionately consolidate
another entity that has chosen to continue to apply the FRSs framework for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
Accordingly, the Institute which is not a Transitioning Entity has adopted the MFRSs framework
including MFRS 1 First-time adoption of MFRSs for the current financial year ended 31 December
2012.
MFRS 1 requires comparative information to be restated as if the requirements of MFRSs effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 have always been applied, except when
MFRS 1 allows certain elective exemptions from such full retrospective application or prohibits
retrospective application of some aspects of MFRSs.
The Institute has consistently applied the same accounting policies in its opening MFRSs statement
of financial position as at 1 January 2011 (date of transition) and throughout all years presented, as
if these policies had always been in effect.
As at 31 December 2011, all FRSs issued under the existing FRSs framework are equivalent to the
MFRSs issued under MFRSs framework except for differences in relation to the transitional
provisions, the adoption of MFRS 141 Agriculture and IC Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate as well as differences in effective dates contained in certain of the existing FRSs.
The adoption of the MFRSs for the current financial year did not result in any changes in accounting
policies and material adjustments to the statement of financial position, statement of
comprehensive income and statement of cash flows of the Institute which are reported in
accordance with the previous FRSs.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New, Revised and Amendments/Improvements to Accounting Standards and IC Int (Continued)
(b) New, revised, amendments/improvement to accounting standards and IC Int that are issued,
but not yet effective and have not been early adopted
The Institute has not adopted the following new and revised MFRSs, amendments/improvements
to MFRSs, new IC Int and amendments to IC Int that have been issued as at the date of
authorisation of these financial statements but are not yet effective for the Institute:
Effective for
financial periods
beginning on or after
New MFRSs
MFRS 9
MFRS 13

Financial Instruments
Fair Value Measurement

1 January 2015
1 January 2013

Revised MFRSs
MFRS 119
Employee Benefits

1 January 2013

Amendments/Improvements to MFRSs
MFRS 1
First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
MFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
MFRS 101
Presentation of Financial Statements

MFRS 116
MFRS 127
MFRS 132

Property, Plant and Equipment
Separate Financial Statements
Financial Instruments: Presentation

1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 July 2012
and
1 January 2013
1 January 2013
1 January 2014
1 January 2013
and
1 January 2014

A brief discussion on the above significant new and revised MFRSs, amendments/improvements to
MFRSs, new IC Int and amendments to IC Int are summarised below. Due to the complexity of
these new standards, the financial effects of their adoption are currently still being assessed by the
Institute.
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments
MFRS 9 specifies how an entity should classify and measure financial assets and financial liabilities.
This standard requires all financial assets to be classified based on how an entity manages its
financial assets (its business model) and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset. Financial assets are to be initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
depending on the business model under which these assets are acquired, they will be measured at
either fair value or at amortised cost.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 • THE INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL AUDITORS MALAYSIA

35

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 New, Revised and Amendments/Improvements to Accounting Standards and IC Int (Continued)
(b) New, revised, amendments/improvement to accounting standards and IC Int that are issued,
but not yet effective and have not been early adopted (Continued)
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
In respect of the financial liabilities, the requirements are generally similar to the former MFRS 139.
However, this standard requires that for financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, changes in fair value attributable to the credit risk of that liability are to be presented in
other comprehensive income, whereas the remaining amount of the change in fair value will be
presented in the profit or loss.
MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
MFRS 13 defines fair value and sets out a framework for measuring fair value, and the disclosure
requirements about fair value. This standard is intended to address the inconsistencies in the
requirements for measuring fair value across different accounting standards. As defined in this
standard, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
2.3 Significant Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The policy for the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance
with Note 2.3(l).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives
of the assets concerned. The annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:Leasehold premises
Air conditioners
Computers and softwares
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Office renovation

2%
20%
20% - 33 1/3%
20%
20%
20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to
ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates
and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of
property, plant and equipment.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation (Continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the net carrying amount is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.
(b) Deferred expenses
Expenses in respect of future projects which are income generating are deferred to the extent of
the estimated income recoverable from the specific project concerned.
The expenses are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The policy for the recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in
accordance with Note 2.3(l).
(c)

Inventories
Inventories comprise mainly the publications and books from the Institute. Inventories are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises the cost of purchase plus
incidentals in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, is determined on
the first-in, first-out basis.
Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
selling expenses.

(d) Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable values. Bad debts are written off when identified.
An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the
reporting date.
(e) Payables
Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future,
whether or not billed to the Institute.
(f)

Deferred income
Deferred income relates to government grant received by the Institute in respect of training
expenses.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(f)

Deferred income (Continued)
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Institute will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods necessary to
match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate.

(g) Income Tax
The tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income represents the aggregate amount of
current tax and deferred tax included in the determination of net profit or loss for the year.
Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the reporting
date arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can
be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income, except when it arises from a transaction which is recognised directly in equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also charged or credited directly in equity.
(h) Revenue Recognition
(i)

Revenue from operations
Revenue from seminars, conferences, workshops, Quality Assurance Review (“QAR”), Certified
Internal Auditor (“CIA”) examination income are recognised on an accrual basis. Entrance fees
and membership subscriptions are recognised as revenue on a cash basis for the fees received
in respect of the year. However, where the subscriptions are received in advance for the
following year’s subscription, they would be recorded as a current liability as the advance
subscriptions are not earned yet.

(ii)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(i)

Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
Institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Institute determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, and the
categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
(i)

Loan and Receivables
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as loans and receivables.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Loan and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates
later than 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the
asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Institute commits to purchase or sell
the assets.

(j)

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.
Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are recognised in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(j)

Financial Liabilities (Continued)
(i)

Other Financial Liabilities
The other financial liabilities of the Institute include trade payables and other payables.
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Ringgit Malaysia at rates of exchange ruling at the
time of the transactions. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
exchange rates ruling at reporting date.
Gains and losses from conversion of assets and liabilities, whether realised or unrealised are
included in the statement of comprehensive income as they arise.
All other foreign exchange differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive income in the
financial year in which they arise.
The principal closing rate used is as follows:

1 US Dollar
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(l)

Impairment of Assets
At each reporting date, the carrying values of assets, other than financial assets and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed for impairment to determine whether there is an indication that the assets
might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with
their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher of the net selling price and its
value in use of the asset, which is measured by reference to discounted future cash flows.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income immediately.
Subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as reversal of the previous
impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would
have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income immediately.

(m) Employee Benefits
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the
financial year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Institute.
Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised
when services rendered by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensated
absences, and short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

(ii)

Defined contribution plan
The Institute contributes to the Employees’ Provident Fund, the national defined contribution
plan. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which they are
related. Once the contributions have been paid, the Institute has no further payment
obligations.

(n) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank
balances, demand deposits and other short term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash and cash equivalents are stated net of fixed deposits pledged with banks for banking
facilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the financial statements requires management of the Institute to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require material adjustments to the
carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

3.1 Judgements made in applying accounting policies
There were no critical judgements made by the Governors in the process of applying the accounting
policies of the Institute that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Institute estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limits on the use of the relevant assets. In addition, the estimation of the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment are based on internal evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is
possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the
estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.
The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these
factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment would increase the recorded expenses and decrease the non-current assets.

(b) Impairment of receivables
The Institute provides for impairment of receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
receivables. Impairment loss is recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management specifically analysed historical bad
debts, current economic trends and changes in payment terms when making a judgement to
evaluate the adequacy of the impairment loss on receivables. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of receivables.
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4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2012

Computers
Leasehold
Air
and
Premises Conditioners Softwares
RM
RM
RM

Furniture
and
Fittings
RM

Office
Office
Equipment Renovation
RM
RM

Total
RM

Cost
At 1 January 2012
Additions
Disposals/written off

659,532
–
–

49,530
–
–

225,396
26,534
(1,214)

65,216
–
–

104,109
579
(1,098)

50,627
–
–

1,154,410
27,113
(2,312)

At 31 December 2012

659,532

49,530

250,716

65,216

103,590

50,627

1,179,211

178,551

41,396

186,515

59,081

85,288

50,627

601,458

13,191
–

3,754
–

25,207
(1,040)

2,498
–

7,137
(1,058)

–
–

51,787
(2,098)

At 31 December 2012

191,742

45,150

210,682

61,579

91,367

50,627

651,147

Net Book Value at
31 December 2012

467,790

4,380

40,034

3,637

12,223

–

528,064

Cost
At 1 January 2011
Additions
Disposals/written off

659,532
–
–

49,530
–
–

204,131
21,265
–

64,544
672
–

99,129
6,179
(1,199)

50,627
–
–

1,127,493
28,116
(1,199)

At 31 December 2011

659,532

49,530

225,396

65,216

104,109

50,627

1,154,410

165,360

37,642

161,568

56,359

77,833

50,627

549,389

13,191
–

3,754
–

24,947
–

2,722
–

8,654
(1,199)

–
–

53,268
(1,199)

At 31 December 2011

178,551

41,396

186,515

59,081

85,288

50,627

601,458

Net Book Value at
31 December 2011

480,981

8,134

38,881

6,135

18,821

–

552,952

Net Book Value at
1 January 2011

494,172

11,888

42,563

8,185

21,296

–

578,104

Accumulated
Depreciation
At 1 January 2012
Depreciation for the
financial year
Disposals/written off

2011

Accumulated
Depreciation
At 1 January 2011
Depreciation for the
financial year
Disposals/written off

Leasehold premises comprise of office lots. The leases will expire in the year 2077 and are free from
encumbrances.
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5.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Institute does not have any fixed credit terms.
The aging profile of trade receivables is as follows:
31.12.2012
RM
Neither past due nor impaired
current - 3 months
4 - 6 months
> 6 months

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

335,628
850
12,927

362,365
158,710
40,358

248,011
46,455
78,256

349,405

561,433

372,722

As the Institute does not have a credit policy, all the trade receivables are neither past due nor impaired.
None of the Institute’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated
during the financial year.

6.

INVENTORIES
31.12.2012
RM
At cost
Books and journals
Less : Provision for slow moving stocks

7.

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

64,759
(5,000)

71,554
(5,000)

62,727
–

59,759

66,554

62,727

DEFERRED EXPENSES
31.12.2012
RM

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

At the beginning of the financial year
Additions during the financial year
Charged during the financial year

–
–
–

550,910
–
(550,910)

64,101
486,809
–

At the end of the financial year

–

–

550,910

Deferred expenses as at 1 January 2011 are expenses in respect of the 2011 IIA International Conference.
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8.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following:
31.12.2012
RM
Cash and bank balances
Fixed deposits with licensed commercial banks

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

570,421
4,005,409

1,759,932
3,764,476

391,723
2,035,587

4,575,830

5,524,408

2,427,310

The Institute has a bank overdraft facility with a credit limit of RM50,000/- (2011 : RM50,000/-). Included
in fixed deposits with licensed commercial banks is an amount of RM50,000/- (2011 : RM50,000/-) held as
collateral for the credit facility.

9.

RESEARCH FUND
The objectives of the research fund are:
(i)

To participate in research activities in the area of internal auditing with members, corporate bodies, the
public, institutions of higher learning and other professional bodies;

(ii)

To avail to interested parties (members, the public, institutions of higher learning, etc) resource
materials for research at the IIA Secretariat. These resources can be in the form of journals, articles,
audio-visual media, etc; and

(iii) To make available research grants or assistance to interested parties to carry out research to promote
the internal audit profession.

10. TRADE PAYABLES
The average trade credit term granted to the Institute is 60 days.
The currency profile of the trade payables is as follows:
31.12.2012
RM
Ringgit Malaysia
United States Dollar

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

38,927
38,035

23,342
–

39,987
–

76,962

23,342

39,987
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11. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
31.12.2012
RM
Other payables
Accruals

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

1,275
399,794

1,148,345
599,074

25,434
610,633

401,069

1,747,419

636,067

12. DEFERRED INCOME
31.12.2012
RM

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

At the beginning of the financial year
Additions during the financial year

–
–

–
–

180,910
14,205

Less: Deferred income recognised to date

–
–

–
–

195,115
(195,115)

At the end of the financial year

–

–

–

Deferred income relates to government grant received by the Institute in respect of training expenses.

13. REVENUE
2012
RM
Entrance fees and subscriptions
Seminar and conference income
2011 IIA International Conference income
Certified Internal Auditor examination income
Quality Assessment Review fees
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2011
RM

836,340
3,251,432
–
629,190
402,500

806,354
1,853,343
9,416,522
661,072
352,600

5,119,462

13,089,891
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14. COSTS
2012
RM
Members’ activities
Seminar and conference
2011 IIA International Conference
Certified Internal Auditor examination
Quality Assessment Review

2011
RM

532,436
1,757,483
–
373,455
124,466

354,457
815,458
8,522,709
362,385
86,460

2,787,840

10,141,469

15. OTHER INCOME
2012
RM
Gain on foreign currency exchange - realised
Income from sales of Institute's publications
and books, etc
Interest income
Miscellaneous

2011
RM

2,741

14,035

57,569
125,747
7,260

53,602
105,856
41,100

193,317

214,593
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16. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2012
RM
Advertisement cost
Bad debts written off
Bank charges
Computer consumables
Courier and postage
Depreciation
Fees and subscriptions (Note 19)
General expenses
HRDF contribution
Insurance
IT improvements
Meeting expenses (Note 20)
Office rental
Printing and stationery
Provision for slow moving stocks
Quit rent and assessment
Repairs and maintenance
Staff remunerations, benefits and staff welfare (Note 21)
Service Tax
Telephone and fax
Travelling and transportation expenses
Upkeep of office
Water and electricity
Writeoff of property, plant and equipment

2011
RM

33,571
–
21,692
781
26,878
51,787
27,660
16,050
12,536
4,208
3,300
109,277
30,000
28,726
–
4,402
20,932
1,660,015
2,892
28,885
18,752
16,245
28,086
214

8,514
2,232
20,188
4,187
23,376
53,268
26,336
10,199
11,919
8,424
–
86,851
30,000
93,280
5,000
4,442
29,711
1,012,272
–
33,293
28,564
13,540
27,328
–

2,146,889

1,532,924

17. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation has been determined after charging amongst other items the following:

2012
RM
Audit fees
Consultancy/ Speaker fees paid to a firm in which
a Governor is a member
Consultancy fees paid to Governors for
services rendered in income generating projects
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–
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3,500
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18. TAXATION
2012
RM
Malaysian taxation
Current year expense
Under/(Over) provision in prior year

2011
RM

77,543
–

220,000
50,136

77,543

270,136

A reconciliation of average effective tax rate applicable to profit before taxation to effective statutory tax
rate is as follows:
2012
RM
Profit before taxation

Average effective tax rate for the year
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income exempted from tax
(Under)/Over provision in prior year
Effective statutory tax rate for the year

2011
RM

378,050

1,630,091

%
20.5
(1.6)
7.1
–

%
16.6
(1.6)
14.0
(3.0)

26.0

26.0

19. FEES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS
2012
RM
Audit fees
Professional fees
Secretarial fees
Tax fees
Subscription fees
Legal fees

2011
RM

8,000
9,810
2,600
4,500
2,500
250

8,000
9,000
3,336
4,500
1,500
–

27,660

26,336
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20. MEETING EXPENSES
They comprised of expenses incurred on Annual General Meeting, Asian Confederation of Institutes of
Internal Auditors’ (ACIIA) meetings, Global Forum, International Committee meetings and conferences
and Board of Governors meetings.

21. STAFF REMUNERATIONS, BENEFITS AND STAFF WELFARE

Staff remunerations
Bonuses
Employees’ Provident Fund
SOCSO
Staff insurance
Staff welfare
Staff medical fees

2012
RM

2011
RM

1,305,952
158,000
163,242
11,323
9,340
7,436
4,722

647,818
218,000
109,273
12,670
10,192
9,075
5,244

1,660,015

1,012,272

In 2011, RM635,923 of the staff remuneration has been taken as part of the conference cost for hosting
the IIA International Conference held in Kuala Lumpur.
In 2012, a total of RM45,000 was paid as gratuity to a retired staff for the contribution made to the
Institute.
The employees of the Institute consist of office staff. The total number of employees of the Institute as at
the end of the financial year was 22 (2011 : 21).
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a)

Classification of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at
amortised cost. The significant accounting policies in Note 2.3 describe how the classes of financial
instruments are measured, and how income and expense, including fair value gains and losses, are
recognised. The following table analyses the financial assets and liabilities in the statement of financial
position by the class of financial instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the
measurement basis:
Loans and
Receivables
RM

Total
RM

31.12.2012
Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

349,405
197,238

349,405
197,238

Total financial assets

546,643

546,643

Other Financial
Liabilities
RM

Total
RM

31.12.2012
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Advance subscriptions and fees

76,962
401,069
337,575

76,962
401,069
337,575

Total financial liabilities

815,606

815,606

Loans and
Receivables
RM

Total
RM

31.12.2011
Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

561,433
104,803

561,433
104,803

Total financial assets

666,236

666,236
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a)

Classification of financial instruments (Continued)
Other Financial
Liabilities
RM

52

Total
RM

31.12.2011
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Advance subscriptions and fees

23,342
1,747,419
282,671

23,342
1,747,419
282,671

Total financial liabilities

2,053,432

2,053,432

Loans and
Receivables
RM

Total
RM

1.1.2011
Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

372,722
152,620

372,722
152,620

Total financial assets

525,342

525,342

Other Financial
Liabilities
RM

Total
RM

1.1.2011
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Advance subscriptions and fees

39,987
636,067
264,706

39,987
636,067
264,706

Total financial liabilities

940,760

940,760
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management
The Institute seeks to manage effectively the various risks namely credit, interest rate, liquidity and
foreign exchange risks, to which the Institute is exposed to in its daily operations.
(i)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligations. The exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and
other receivables. Trade and other receivables presented in the statement of financial position are
net of allowances for impairment losses, estimated by management based on prior experience
and the current economic environment.
The exposure to credit risk is monitored by the management on an ongoing basis and the
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. The carrying
amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statement of financial position at the end of the
reporting period represent the maximum exposure of the Institute to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. No financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk other than those
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
There are no concentrations of credit risk for the financial assets.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments held
by the Institute will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Institute’s exposure
to interest rate risk arises primarily from its fixed deposits placed with licensed commercial banks.
The following table details the interest rate profile of the financial assets of the Institute at the
reporting date.
Effective
interest rate
%

Within
1 Year
RM

1 -5
Years
RM

31.12.2012
Fixed deposits with licensed
commercial banks

2.30 - 3.05

4,005,409

–

4,005,409

31.12.2011
Fixed deposits with licensed
commercial banks

2.30 - 3.05

3,764,476

–

3,764,476

1.1.2011
Fixed deposits with licensed
commercial banks

2.00 - 2.75

2,035,587

–

2,035,587

Total
RM
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis below shows the effect on net profit and equity of the Institute assuming
an instantaneous 25 basis points (“bp”) change in the interest rates of fixed deposits from the
reporting date, with all variables held constant.

Net profit for the financial year

<----------------Increase/(Decrease)----------------->
0.25%
(0.25%)
31.12.2012
31.12.2011
2012
2011
RM
RM
RM
RM
10,014
9,411
(10,014)
(9,411)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the
observable market environment.

(iii) Liquidity risk
The Institute actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability
of funding so as to ensure that all funding needs are met. As part of this overall prudent liquidity
management, the Institute maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash equivalents to meet its
working capital requirements.
(iv) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Institute has transactional currency exposures arising from fees payable to The Institute of
Internal Auditors Inc. that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the Institute.
Exposure to foreign currency
The following table details the exposure of the Institute at the reporting date to currency risk
arising from recognised financial assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Institute. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in Ringgit Malaysia, translated using the spot rate at reporting date:
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(iv) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

31.12.2012
RM
US Dollar
Trade payables
Other payables

31.12.2011
RM

1.1.2011
RM

38,035
–

–
890,400

–
–

38,035

890,400

–

Sensitivity Analysis
The following table indicates the approximate change in the net profit and equity of the Institute
in response to reasonable possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Institute
has significant exposure at the reporting date, assuming all other variable risk variables remained
constant. Other components of the equity would not be affected by changes in the foreign
exchange rate:

Net profit for the financial year

<----------------Increase/(Decrease)----------------->
RM Strengthens (10%)
RM Weakens (10%)
31.12.2012
31.12.2011
2012
2011
RM
RM
RM
RM
3,804
89,040
(3,804)
(89,040)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the Institute which expose the Institute to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date.
(c)

Fair Values
(i)

Recognised financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their respective carrying
values on the statement of financial position of the Institute.

(ii) Unrecognised financial instruments
There were no unrecognised financial instruments as at 31 December 2012.
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STATEMENT BY GOVERNORS
We, DATIN LOW SUET MOI and CHRISTINE ONG MAY EE, being two of the Governors of THE INSTITUTE OF
INTERNAL AUDITORS MALAYSIA (the “Institute”), do hereby state that in the opinion of the Governors, the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 28 to 55 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Institute as at 31 December 2012 and of the results of the operations, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Institute for the financial year ended on that date in accordance with the
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Governors in accordance with a resolution of the Governors on

DATIN LOW SUET MOI
Governor

CHRISTINE ONG MAY EE
Governor

Kuala Lumpur
18 March 2013

STATUTORY DECLARATION
I, MOHAMED FAROOK BIN NASAR, being the Governor primarily responsible for the financial management
of THE INSTITUTE OF INTERNAL AUDITORS MALAYSIA, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 28 to 55, are to the best of my knowledge and belief,
correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, l960.

MOHAMED FAROOK BIN NASAR

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory on

Before me,

Commissioner for Oaths
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF THE INSTITUTE OF
INTERNAL AUDITORS MALAYSIA
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the financial statements of The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia (the “Institute”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012 of the Institute, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Institute for the
financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,
as set out on pages 28 to 55.

Governors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Governors of the Institute are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and
fair view in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Governors are also responsible for
such internal controls as the Governors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the Institute’s preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute’s internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Governors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Institute as at 31
December 2012 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance
with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in our opinion,
the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia to be kept by
the Institute have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

Other Matters
As stated in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Institute adopted the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
on 1 January 2012 with a transition date of 1 January 2011. These standards were applied retrospectively by the
Governors to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2011, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and its related
disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our
responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial statements of the Institute for the financial year ended 31
December 2012 have, in these circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the
opening balances as at 1 January 2012 do not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as
at 31 December 2012 and the financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.
This report is made solely to the members of the Institute, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng
No. AF 0117
Chartered Accountants

M.J. Monteiro
No. 828/05/12 (J/PH)
Partner

Kuala Lumpur
18 March 2013
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
The Institute proposes to implement the amendments to the Articles of Association (for which differences are
underlined and highlighted in bold below under the columns “Existing Articles” and “Proposed Articles”
respectively).

No.

Existing Clause

Proposed Clause

1.

N/A – Insertion of new word and its
interpretation

“Term” means the number of years a Governor
holds office before he is required to retire and
offers himself for re-election.

4.

ii) “Fellow Member” refers to a conferred status
upon persons who have achieved distinction
in their profession and who have made
valuable contributions to internal auditing
and/or to the Institute provided that the
conferees:

ii) “Fellow Member” refers to a conferred status
upon persons who have achieved distinction
in their profession and who have made
valuable contributions to internal auditing
and/or to the Institute provided that the
conferees:

a. have been a Professional Member for at
least three (3) years; and

a.

have been a Professional member of the
Institute for at least (10) years; and

b. have had five (5) years internal auditing
experience, three (3) years of which shall
be in a senior position;

b.

have had at least five (5) years of internal
auditing experience in a senior position
or an academician of good standing;
and

c. have been nominated by the Awards
Conferment Committee and approved by
the Board of Governors; or

c.

d. have been a professional or an
academician of good standing who has
been recommended by the Awards
Conferment Committee and approved by
the Board of Governors.

have rendered exceptional services in the
areas of development, promotion and
enhancement of the internal auditing
profession and the Institute; and

d.

have been recommended by the Awards
Conferment Committee and approved
by the Board of Governors.

56.

The Audit Committee shall be responsible for
expressing an opinion as to whether or not the
accounts of the Institute show a true and fair
view of the income and expenditure, receipts
and payments of the Institute for the period
covered by the accounts and of its state of affairs
as at the date thereof, before its presentation to
the External Auditors.

The Role of the Audit Committee will be stated
in the Terms of Reference of the Audit
Committee which will be reviewed annually by
the Board of Governors.

57.

The Audit Committee shall express an opinion on
the state of internal controls of the Institute.
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